
 
Rockaway Beach City Hall is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other 
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to City Hall at 503-374-1752. 
 
9/6/2023 4:05 PM 

City of Rockaway Beach 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda    
 
Date:   Wednesday, September 13, 2023  
Time:   6:00 P.M. 
Location:  Rockaway Beach City Hall, 276 Hwy 101 - Civic Facility  
 
Watch live stream here: corb.us/live-stream 
View meeting later here: https://janescottvideoproductions.com 
 
Join here to attend remotely:  
Regular City Council Meeting 
Meeting ID: 890 2597 7316 
Passcode: 530812 
Dial by your location 
253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
 
Comments may be submitted electronically by sending an email no later than 48 hours prior to the 
meeting to CityHall@Corb.us 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER – Charles McNeilly, Mayor 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
 Mayor: Charles McNeilly 
 Councilors: Penny Cheek, Mary McGinnis, Tom Martine, Kristine Hayes, Alesia Franken  
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 
a. Approval of August 9, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 
b. Approval of August 9, 2023 Workshop Minutes 
c. Review of August 2023 Check Register 

 
5. PRESENTATIONS, GUESTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS 

a. Jetty Creek Watershed Working Group – Jon Wickersham, North Coast Land Conservancy 
b. Business Façade Improvement Grant - Nan Devlin, Tillamook Coast Visitors Association 

 
6. STAFF REPORTS 

a.  Fire Department 
b. Sheriff’s Office 
c. Public Works 
d. City Manager 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – None Scheduled 

 
8. CITIZEN INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

https://corb.us/live-stream
https://janescottvideoproductions.com/
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89025977316?pwd=ckNIUGpXU0N4a2t2OXZQS21OLythQT09
mailto:CityHall@Corb.us


 
Rockaway Beach City Hall is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other 
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to City Hall at 503-374-1752. 
 
9/6/2023 4:05 PM 

 
9. OLD BUSINESS – None Scheduled 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Consideration of Resolution 23-1003 Approving Fire Apparatus Purchase & Financing  

 
b. Consideration of Resolution 23-1004 Approving Awards for the 2023 Community Grant 

Program 
 

c. Consideration of Resolution 23-1005 Approving a Memorandum of Understanding Among 
the Participants of the Jetty Creek Working Group 
 

d. Consideration of Resolution 23-1006 Approving a Lease Agreement with Tillamook County 
for the Lake Lytle Boat Launch 
 

e. Consideration of Resolution 23-1008 Approving a Lease Agreement with Neah-Kah-Nie 
School District No. 56 for Tennis Court Property 

 
11. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 

  
12. COUNCIL CONCERNS 

 
13. MAYOR’S REPORT 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 



 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 1 of 6 
Regular Session Minutes – August 9, 2023 
 

City of Rockaway Beach 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes      
 
Date:   Wednesday, August 9, 2023 
Location:  Rockaway Beach City Hall, 276 Hwy 101 - Civic Facility  

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor McNeilly called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
Start time: 06:00:27 PM (00:00:25) 
 
 
Mayor - Charles McNeilly: Present 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Present 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Present 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Present 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Present (joined at 6:07 p.m.) 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Present 
 
Staff Present: Luke Shepard, City Manager; Melissa Thompson, City Recorder; Dan Emerson, 

Public Works Superintendent; Todd Hesse, Fire Chief; and Kevin Grogan, Sheriff’s 

Department Deputy. 
 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 
Start time: 06:00:51 PM (00:00:49) 
 
a. Approval of July 12, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 
b. Approval of July 12, 2023 Workshop Minutes 
c. Review of July 2023 Check Register  

 
Martine made a motion, seconded by Franken, to adopt the Consent Agenda. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Motion 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Absent 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 

avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:00:25
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:00:45
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:00:45
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:00:45
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:00:45
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:00:45
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:00:45
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:00:49
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:02:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:02:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:02:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:02:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:02:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:02:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:02:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:02:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:02:15


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 2 of 6 
Regular Session Minutes – August 9, 2023 
 

 
 

 
5. PRESENTATIONS, GUESTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
a. Jetty Creek Watershed Working Group (item removed from agenda) 

 
b. Street Improvement Plan Proposal – Matt Del Moro, HBH Consulting Engineers 

Start time: 06:02:31 PM (00:02:29) 
 
Del Moro shared a presentation, providing an overview of HBH Consulting Engineers’ proposal 

for a capital improvement plan for streets. Del Moro and Shepard answered clarifying questions 
from the Council regarding the schedule, public involvement, and the number of HBH staff that 
would be involved in the project.   
 

 c.  Salmonberry Trail Community Path Design Memorandum – Jon-Paul Bowles, Destination 
Management Advisors  
Start time: 06:09:42 PM (00:09:40) 
 
Bowles shared a presentation on the Salmonberry Trail Community Path Design Project final 
report.  Bowles answered clarifying questions from the Council regarding design 
recommendations, response to community outreach, and next steps.  
 

 
 

6. STAFF REPORTS 
 
a. Fire Department 

Start time: 06:35:57 PM (00:35:55) 
 
Hesse presented his staff report on the activities and operations of the Rockaway Beach Fire 
Rescue department for the month of July 2023. He noted an amended total of 8 trainings in July. 
 
 

b. Sheriff’s Office 
Start time: 06:44:13 PM (00:44:11) 
 
Grogan summarized the Sherrif’s Office report for July 2023.  
 
 

b. Public Works 
Start time: 06:46:02 PM (00:46:00) 
 
Emerson presented his report on Public Works department activities in July. He added that an 
Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) speed zone investigation for the area just north of 
Nedonna Road to just south of Minnehaha Street was completed and the ODOT decision was to 
retain the existing 30 mile per hour speed, but extend it north by .28 miles into the existing 45 
miles per hour speed zone. Emerson answered clarifying questions for the Council regarding the 

avca:e531d599-8aef-425b-8888-6358f120bdef@00:04:27
avca:e531d599-8aef-425b-8888-6358f120bdef@00:04:27
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:02:29
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:09:40
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:35:55
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:44:11
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:46:00


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 3 of 6 
Regular Session Minutes – August 9, 2023 
 

speed zone investigation. There were Council suggestions about how to provide public notice 
regarding water conservation. 
 
 

c. City Manager 
Start time: 06:54:40 PM (00:54:38) 
 
Shepard shared a presentation providing background information on the business items on the 
agenda. He presented a tentative meeting schedule for the Street Capital Improvements Plan 
Shepard reviewed several grants that the City was pursuing, provided an update and tentative 
meeting schedule for the Destination Management Plan, and provided additional updates on other 
current tasks and projects. 
 
 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – None Scheduled 
 

 
 

8. CITIZEN INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Start time: 07:08:15 PM (01:08:13) 
 
Goldea See commented that it can be difficult for older people to get from the mainland down to the 
ocean.  
 
McNeilly noted that there was a project planned to install stairs and a ramp for more accessible beach 
access at the Wayside. 
 
McNeilly announced that the new Council Meeting rules will take effect on August 11, 2023. The 
public comment time will change from 5 minutes to 4 minutes, which will allow two additional 
participants to speak within the 40-minute time allotted for public comment. 
 
 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS – None Scheduled 
 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 
a. Consideration of Resolution 23-999 Adopting Community Path Design Memorandum 

Start time: 07:10:57 PM (01:10:55) 
 
McNeilly explained that this resolution adopts a conceptual design memorandum for the 
Rockaway Beach section of the Salmonberry Trail. After widespread community engagement, 
Destination Management Advisors (DMA) has completed this design memo to act as a 
guiding document for the next phase of the project. 

 
No audience members wished to comment. 

avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@00:54:38
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:08:13
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:10:55


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 4 of 6 
Regular Session Minutes – August 9, 2023 
 

Hayes made a motion, seconded by Cheek, to approve Resolution 23-999 Adopting 
Community Path Design Memorandum 
 
Hayes commented that some of the public meetings were not heavily attended which suggests 
that citizens really wanted the path and there wasn’t opposition to it. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Motion 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
 

a. Consideration of Resolution 23-1001 Approving a Proposal from HBH Consulting 
Engineers for a Street Capital Improvements Plan  
Start time: 07:13:21 PM (01:13:19) 
 
McNeilly said that this resolution approves a proposal from HBH Consulting Engineers to 
complete a Street Capital Improvement Plan. The total estimate for time and materials is 
$35,250. 
 
No audience members wished to comment. 
 
Martine made a motion, seconded by McGinnis, to approve Resolution 23-1001 Approving a 
Proposal from HBH Consulting Engineers for a Street Capital Improvements Plan. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 

 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Motion 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
 

b. Consideration of Resolution 23-1002 Adopting Paid Leave Oregon Policy 
Start time: 07:14:58 PM (01:14:56) 
 
McNeilly shared that this resolution adopts a policy for Paid Leave Oregon, a new state-run 
program that allows employees paid time off for family leave, medical leave, and safe leave. 
 
No audience members wished to comment. 

avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:13:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:13:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:13:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:13:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:13:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:13:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:13:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:13:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:13:19
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:14:55
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:14:55
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:14:55
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:14:55
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:14:55
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:14:55
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:14:55
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:14:55
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:14:56


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 5 of 6 
Regular Session Minutes – August 9, 2023 
 

  
Franken made a motion, seconded by Hayes, to approve Resolution 23-1002 Adopting Paid 
Leave Oregon Policy. 
 
Shepard clarified for Cheek that the employee union contract was already updated to reflect 
Paid Leave Oregon. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Motion 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Abstain (due to technical difficulties) 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
 

   
11. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA – None removed. 

 
 
 

12. COUNCIL CONCERNS 
Start time: 07:16:56 PM (01:16:54) 
 
Franken thanked Shepard and staff for keeping the Council updated and the City moving forward 
with projects. She thanked Emerson for providing updates on the water situation and his 
conscientious approach. 
 
Hayes commented on the thoroughness of the meeting packet materials, project spreadsheet and other 
data being provided in order to make decisions. She noted that she was happy about new staff. Hayes 
shared that she heard positive comments from the public regarding trash and restroom facilities and it 
reflects how well staff cares for the community. 
 
Martine commented on activities at the Lake Lytle boat ramp and suggested that signs be posted 
indicating that it is illegal to flush boat motors. 

 
Cheek apologized for the technical difficulties, and commented that it was a great meeting. She added 
that she appreciated the efforts that Bowles put into the Salmonberry Trail Community Path project 
and was glad it was moving forward. 
 
McGinnis reported on positive comments she heard from a community member. She commended the 
work that the City is doing, noting that a project list that the City Manager shared with the Council at 
the Workshop meeting would be available on the City website.  

 
 
 

avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:16:49
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:16:49
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:16:49
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:16:49
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:16:49
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:16:49
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:16:49
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:16:49
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:16:54


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 6 of 6 
Regular Session Minutes – August 9, 2023 
 

13. MAYOR’S REPORT 
Start time: 07:23:17 PM (01:23:15) 
 
McNeilly reported that the next “Coffee with Manager and Mayor” meeting will be held Thursday, 

August 24, 2023. He said that a summary of issues shared by residents at the July meeting was 
included in the agenda packet. 
 
McNeilly commented on residents’ concerns about the increase in short-term rentals (STRs) and their 
impact on the city. McNeilly commented that it may be time to consider a phase two review of the 
Short-Term Rental Ordinance to discuss what the City needs to do to both support the STR industry, 
but also support residents in maintaining their quality of life.  
 
McNeilly also commented on concerns regarding sidewalks. He said it was noted that the TSP and 
Comprehensive Plan both call for extending sidewalks north and south on Highway 101. He 
encouraged the Chamber of Commerce and Business Association to join forces and explore the 
viability of establishing a Local Improvement District (LID) to fund sidewalk improvements. 
 
McNeilly added that a long-time resident recently commented on positive changes in the community. 
 
 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
Start time: 07:26:41 PM (01:26:39) 
 
Martine moved, seconded by McGinnis, to adjourn the meeting at 7:27 p.m. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 

 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Motion 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 

MINUTES APPROVED THIS 
13TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023 

 
         
                 ______________________________ 
         Charles McNeilly, Mayor  
 
 ATTEST  
 
 
      
Melissa Thompson, City Recorder  

avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:23:15
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:26:39
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:27:06
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:27:06
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:27:06
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:27:06
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:27:06
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:27:06
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:27:06
avca:edfac35e-d46d-414b-80fd-cf0f136583ba@01:27:06


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 1 of 2 
Workshop Minutes – August 9, 2023 

City of Rockaway Beach 
City Council Workshop Minutes     
 
Date:   Wednesday, August 9, 2023  
Time:   4:30 P.M. – 5:40 P.M. 
Location:  Rockaway Beach City Hall, 276 HWY 101 - Civic Facility  

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor McNeilly called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

Start time: 04:30:23 PM (00:00:02) 
 
Mayor - Charles McNeilly: Present 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Present 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Present (arrived at 4:31p.m.) 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Present 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Present 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Present 
 
Staff Present: Luke Shepard, City Manager; Melissa Thompson, City Recorder; and Todd Hesse, 

Fire Chief 
 

3. COUNCIL BRIEFING/DISCUSSION 
 

a. Fire Rescue Department Capital Purchase Funding Options 
Start time: 04:31:35 PM (00:01:14) 
 
Shepard provided background information and invited Hesse to give a presentation. Hesse 
gave a presentation on a Fire Engine Replacement Project, proposing to replace Engine 21 
with a Ladder 21. Hesse reviewed financing options and recommended the lease to own 
option. He noted that a demo apparatus may be available at a reduced price for delivery in 
December 2024. Hesse answered clarifying questions for the Council. Shepard answered 
clarifying questions regarding financing and budget. After discussion, there was Council 
consensus to have Hesse review informal financing information from two other companies, 
and a desire to have prepayment penalty information. There was Council consensus to hold a 
Special Meeting on August 23, 2023 to expedite the decision to authorize the purchase. There 
was discussion regarding ensuring that adequate notice was provided for the Special Meeting. 
 

b. Project/Task Priorities  
Start time: 05:12:04 PM (00:41:43) 
 
Shepard presented a list of projects and tasks that staff were working on. He explained that he 
wanted the Council to be informed, to confirm that the list was complete, and to ensure that 
the projects and tasks match the Council’s priorities. Shepard reviewed the project/task 
priorities with the Council, solicited input, and answered questions. Items 1 through 14 were 

avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@00:00:02
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@00:00:35
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@00:00:35
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@00:00:35
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@00:00:35
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@00:00:35
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@00:00:35
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@00:01:14
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@00:41:43


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 2 of 2 
Workshop Minutes – August 9, 2023 

discussed. It was noted that the list would be revisited at future meetings, and that the Council 
could also email to Shepard any items they would like to propose be added to the list. 
 
 

4. ADJOURNMENT 
Start time: 05:41:55 PM (01:11:34) 

 
Martine made a motion, seconded by Franken, to adjourn the meeting at 5:42 p.m. 

 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Motion 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
 

 
MINUTES APPROVED THIS 
13TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023 

 
         
               ______________________________ 

Charles McNeilly, Mayor  
 
ATTEST  
 
 
___________________________  
Melissa Thompson, City Recorder  

avca:d3ddbecc-27f6-49ec-aa2a-97436304dd36@01:18:40
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@01:11:34
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@01:11:50
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@01:11:50
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@01:11:50
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@01:11:50
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@01:11:50
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@01:11:50
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@01:11:50
avca:25c883bd-8234-46a0-8dfe-3f49b325d223@01:11:50


DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:34AM       PAGE: 1

REVENUES & RESOURCES

10-31-4010 CUR YR PROP TX - GEN FUND .00 2,085.10 435,000.00 432,914.90 .5

10-31-4020 DELINQUENT PROP TAX REVENUE .00 960.13 8,500.00 7,539.87 11.3

10-31-4040 LIQUOR TAX - OLCC .00 3,407.94 26,000.00 22,592.06 13.1

10-31-4050 CIGARETTE TAX .00 96.23 1,200.00 1,103.77 8.0

10-31-4060 OTHER TAX REVENUE .00 10,065.52 30,000.00 19,934.48 33.6

TOTAL REVENUES & RESOURCES .00 16,614.92 500,700.00 484,085.08 3.3

GRANTS, LOANS & BONDS

10-33-4185 STATE REVENUE SHARING .00 .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .0

TOTAL GRANTS, LOANS & BONDS .00 .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .0

FEES & SERVICES

10-34-4060 LICENSES & FRANCHISES 21,074.86 287,164.66 280,000.00 (        7,164.66) 102.6

10-34-4080 PERMITS, BLDG TILL CO PORTION 275.00 1,100.00 .00 (        1,100.00) .0

10-34-4085 LAND USE-ORDINANCE FEES-PERMIT 4,297.50 6,560.00 21,000.00 14,440.00 31.2

10-34-4141 CIVIC/COMM CENTER RENT .00 175.00 850.00 675.00 20.6

10-34-4142 FIRST FLOOR RENT-HLTH DEPT 946.00 1,892.00 11,500.00 9,608.00 16.5

10-34-4145 CC-REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-34-4146 HEALTH DEPT UTILITY REIMB 225.64 584.51 2,650.00 2,065.49 22.1

TOTAL FEES & SERVICES 26,819.00 297,476.17 316,500.00 19,023.83 94.0

FIRE DEPARTMENT

10-35-4091 NEDONNA FIRE DIST .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

10-35-4092 TWIN ROCKS WATER DISTRICT .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-35-4093 OR STATE FORESTRY DEPT .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-35-4185 FIRE PERMITS .00 .00 50.00 50.00 .0

10-35-4186 EMERGENCY SERVICES FEE 20,780.00 20,896.19 125,000.00 104,103.81 16.7

TOTAL FIRE DEPARTMENT 20,780.00 20,896.19 165,550.00 144,653.81 12.6

OTHER REVENUES

10-36-4120 INTEREST ON INVESTED FUNDS .00 .00 12,500.00 12,500.00 .0

10-36-4150 MISC RCPTS - GEN FUND .00 738.19 12,000.00 11,261.81 6.2

10-36-4190 SURPLUS PROPERTY SALES .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER REVENUES .00 738.19 25,500.00 24,761.81 2.9



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:34AM       PAGE: 2

POLICE DEPARTMENT

10-37-4100 CITATIONS - FINES & FORFEITS 473.05 796.05 15,000.00 14,203.95 5.3

TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT 473.05 796.05 15,000.00 14,203.95 5.3

TRANSFERS

10-39-4030 TIF - TRT POLICE .00 .00 344,921.00 344,921.00 .0

10-39-4032 TIF  -SEWER OP .00 .00 45,000.00 45,000.00 .0

10-39-4036 TIF-TRT-P&R .00 .00 21,218.00 21,218.00 .0

10-39-4037 TIF - CC .00 .00 45,000.00 45,000.00 .0

10-39-4038 TIF- TRT-GF PW CAP OUTLAY .00 .00 39,187.00 39,187.00 .0

10-39-4052 TIF - TRT-CTY BEAUTIF .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-39-4053 TIF - TRT FIRE DEPT .00 .00 421,825.00 421,825.00 .0

10-39-4055 TIF - TRT USDA LOAN .00 .00 64,000.00 64,000.00 .0

TOTAL TRANSFERS .00 .00 986,151.00 986,151.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 48,072.05 336,521.52 2,029,401.00 1,692,879.48 16.6



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:34AM       PAGE: 3

POLICE DEPARTMENT

10-45-6531 CODE ENFORCEMENT .00 .00 65,000.00 65,000.00 .0

10-45-6550 MATERIALS SUPPLIES 21,843.97 41,843.97 564,712.00 522,868.03 7.4

TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT 21,843.97 41,843.97 629,712.00 587,868.03 6.6

FIRE DEPARTMENT

10-46-5052 FIRE CHIEF WAGES 9,802.54 18,158.78 102,700.00 84,541.22 17.7

10-46-5053 FIREFIGHTERS 18,110.41 33,906.59 138,136.00 104,229.41 24.6

10-46-5054 OVERTIME-FIRE DEPARTMENT .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-46-5061 VOLUNTEER FIRE FIGHTER BONUS .00 5,310.90 41,250.00 35,939.10 12.9

10-46-5062 RECORD KEEPING & TRAINING 250.00 500.00 3,500.00 3,000.00 14.3

10-46-5152 PAYROLL EXPENSES - FIRE 12,937.84 30,837.72 223,697.00 192,859.28 13.8

10-46-6110 ELECTRICITY 188.70 188.70 3,500.00 3,311.30 5.4

10-46-6530 TELEPHONE 3,820.18 4,018.72 8,500.00 4,481.28 47.3

10-46-6535 MEDICAL 1,634.16 1,634.16 10,000.00 8,365.84 16.3

10-46-6555 SUPPLIES, GEAR & SERVICES 3,577.20 4,009.91 40,000.00 35,990.09 10.0

10-46-6570 INS- VEHICLE, LIAB, EQUIP, BLD 15,854.40 15,854.40 20,000.00 4,145.60 79.3

10-46-6580 FUEL & OIL 815.32 815.32 10,000.00 9,184.68 8.2

10-46-6582 ELECTRONIC REP-MAINT .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

10-46-6630 FIRE BLDG MAINT 528.63 572.02 15,000.00 14,427.98 3.8

10-46-6660 SAFETY TRAINING & FIRST AID 1,075.47 1,075.47 14,000.00 12,924.53 7.7

10-46-6670 REQUIRED EQUIP TESTING .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-46-6690 VEHICLE MAINT, SUP & REP .00 .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .0

TOTAL FIRE DEPARTMENT 68,594.85 116,882.69 666,783.00 549,900.31 17.5



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 4

ADMINISTRATION

10-48-5057 OFFICE ASSISTANT 10,235.40 20,587.98 119,390.00 98,802.02 17.2

10-48-5065 OVERTIME - CITY HALL .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

10-48-5075 ACCRUED VACATION - ADMIN .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-48-5082 CITY MANAGER 6,649.86 13,299.72 83,790.00 70,490.28 15.9

10-48-5085 MAYOR & COUNCIL STIPEND 125.00 250.00 1,100.00 850.00 22.7

10-48-5152 PAYROLL EXP - ADMIN 8,940.17 18,954.33 172,690.00 153,735.67 11.0

10-48-6410 PLANNING & ZONING 6,386.54 6,386.54 155,000.00 148,613.46 4.1

10-48-6440 REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-48-6530 TELEPHONE 95.57 95.57 6,000.00 5,904.43 1.6

10-48-6570 INS-VEHICLE, LIAB, EQUIP, BLDG 12,177.53 12,177.53 8,000.00 (                4,177.53) 152.2

10-48-6571 TECHNOLOGY & DATA PROCESSING 368.21 765.21 45,000.00 44,234.79 1.7

10-48-6577 ORDINANCE UPDATE .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

10-48-6596 EMERGENCY SERVICES EXPENSE .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-48-6666 CITY BEAUTIFICATION .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

10-48-6667 STORM DAMAGE REPAIR .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

10-48-6830 CITY HALL OPERATIONS 4,785.06 6,858.45 83,000.00 76,141.55 8.3

10-48-6831 DUES-CITY, OFFICIALS & STAFF 50.03 1,599.06 2,500.00 900.94 64.0

10-48-6835 BANK FEES .00 39.03 2,000.00 1,960.97 2.0

10-48-6840 COURT COSTS .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

10-48-6850 ATTORNEY 2,209.00 2,209.00 29,000.00 26,791.00 7.6

10-48-6870 AUDIT & BOND 323.25 323.25 8,000.00 7,676.75 4.0

10-48-6880 ADVERTISING 207.70 207.70 2,000.00 1,792.30 10.4

10-48-6890 STATIONERY & SUPPLIES 529.05 529.05 12,000.00 11,470.95 4.4

10-48-6915 TRAVEL & TRAIN-STAFF 1,272.00 1,272.00 5,000.00 3,728.00 25.4

10-48-6920 BLDG MAINT-CTY HALL 346.35 3,798.19 35,000.00 31,201.81 10.9

10-48-6931 COUNCIL EXPENSE 983.41 983.41 1,000.00 16.59 98.3

10-48-6932 CITY MANAGER FUND .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-48-6954 REVENUE SHARING PMTS .00 .00 60,000.00 60,000.00 .0

10-48-6999 OPERATING CONTINGENCY - GF .00 .00 200,000.00 200,000.00 .0

10-48-8000 GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROJECTS .00 .00 60,405.00 60,405.00 .0

10-48-8041 TO - ROADS/STREETS, FRANCHISE .00 .00 49,370.00 49,370.00 .0

10-48-8044 TO -FIRE EQUIPMENT RESERVE .00 .00 45,000.00 45,000.00 .0

10-48-8518 DEBT SVC - USDA LOAN 624.65 55,779.65 140,000.00 84,220.35 39.8

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 56,308.78 146,115.67 1,342,945.00 1,196,829.33 10.9

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 146,747.60 304,842.33 2,639,440.00 2,334,597.67 11.6

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (              98,675.55) 31,679.19 (            610,039.00) (            641,718.19) 5.2



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

FIRE EQUIP RESERVE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 5

OTHER INCOME

14-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER INCOME .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .0

TRANSFERS

14-39-4026 TIF - GF .00 .00 45,000.00 45,000.00 .0

14-39-4030 TIF - TRT .00 .00 371,607.00 371,607.00 .0

TOTAL TRANSFERS .00 .00 416,607.00 416,607.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 .00 417,807.00 417,807.00 .0



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

FIRE EQUIP RESERVE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 6

FIRE DEPARTMENT

14-47-7621 FIRE EQUIP & CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 375,000.00 375,000.00 .0

TOTAL FIRE DEPARTMENT .00 .00 375,000.00 375,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 375,000.00 375,000.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 .00 42,807.00 42,807.00 .0



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

LOAN PAYMENT RESERVE FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 7

OTHER INCOME

16-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER INCOME .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

PROJECT & EQUIP RESERVE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 8

OTHER INCOME

21-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER INCOME .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

TRANSFERS IN

21-39-4030 TIF - TRT .00 .00 1,190,481.00 1,190,481.00 .0

TOTAL TRANSFERS IN .00 .00 1,190,481.00 1,190,481.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 .00 1,193,481.00 1,193,481.00 .0



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

PROJECT & EQUIP RESERVE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 9

CAPITAL OUTLAY

21-47-7577 TOURISM CAPITAL PROJECTS 89,524.03 148,259.03 2,425,000.00 2,276,740.97 6.1

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 89,524.03 148,259.03 2,425,000.00 2,276,740.97 6.1

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 89,524.03 148,259.03 2,425,000.00 2,276,740.97 6.1

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (              89,524.03) (            148,259.03) (         1,231,519.00) (         1,083,259.97) (  12.0)



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

ROADS & STREETS

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 10

STATE REVENUE

30-31-2985 RESTRICTED BIKE PATHS ODOT .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

30-31-4340 STATE STREET - DMV - REVENUE .00 11,081.16 114,000.00 102,918.84 9.7

TOTAL STATE REVENUE .00 11,081.16 115,000.00 103,918.84 9.6

OTHER REVENUE

30-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME .00 .00 16,500.00 16,500.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE .00 .00 16,500.00 16,500.00 .0

TRANSFERS

30-39-4030 TIF - TRT .00 .00 370,926.00 370,926.00 .0

30-39-4038 TIF - GEN FND .00 .00 49,370.00 49,370.00 .0

TOTAL TRANSFERS .00 .00 420,296.00 420,296.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 11,081.16 551,796.00 540,714.84 2.0



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

ROADS & STREETS

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 11

PERSONNEL SERVICES

30-41-5055 MAINT WKR WAGES 4,802.47 9,982.60 75,658.00 65,675.40 13.2

30-41-5056 EXTRA LABOR .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

30-41-5058 SUPER OF PUBLIC WORKS .00 .00 11,090.00 11,090.00 .0

30-41-5059 PLANT OPERATOR - WATER OP 774.10 1,548.19 .00 (                1,548.19) .0

30-41-5065 OVERTIME .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

30-41-5075 ACCRUED VAC - RDS & STS .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

30-41-5082 CTY MANAGER - RDS & STS 949.99 1,899.98 11,970.00 10,070.02 15.9

30-41-5085 MAYOR & COUNCIL STIPEND 25.00 50.00 500.00 450.00 10.0

30-41-5152 PAYROLL EXP - RDS & STS 3,584.71 10,249.53 82,858.00 72,608.47 12.4

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 10,136.27 23,730.30 188,076.00 164,345.70 12.6

MATERIALS & SERVICES

30-45-6125 ELECTRIC-STLITES-WYSD-CTYPRKS 161.18 199.34 2,100.00 1,900.66 9.5

30-45-6130 WAYSIDE & PARKS 6,899.19 10,753.71 35,000.00 24,246.29 30.7

30-45-6131 NATURE CONSERVANCY 350.00 350.00 5,000.00 4,650.00 7.0

30-45-6570 INS-VEHICLE, LIAB, EQUIP, BLDG 6,110.01 6,110.01 5,000.00 (                1,110.01) 122.2

30-45-6572 STREET LIGHTS 1,432.00 2,828.00 23,000.00 20,172.00 12.3

30-45-6580 FUEL & OIL 585.65 585.65 7,000.00 6,414.35 8.4

30-45-6592 PARKING LEASE .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

30-45-6600 DRAINAGE & FLOOD CONTROL .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

30-45-6610 SIDEWALKS, CURBS & FOOTPATHS 63.31 63.31 4,000.00 3,936.69 1.6

30-45-6620 STREET SIGNS .00 .00 6,000.00 6,000.00 .0

30-45-6667 STORM DAMAGE REPAIR .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

30-45-6690 VEHICLE MAINT, SUPP & REP 14.99 14.99 15,000.00 14,985.01 .1

30-45-6800 ROADS, MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 3,804.60 4,127.14 32,000.00 27,872.86 12.9

TOTAL MATERIALS & SERVICES 19,420.93 25,032.15 146,600.00 121,567.85 17.1

CAPITAL OUTLAY

30-47-7502 RDS-STS IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS .00 .00 67,000.00 67,000.00 .0

30-47-7506 RDS-STS: CAPITAL IMPROV PLAN .00 .00 150,000.00 150,000.00 .0

30-47-7507 RDS-STS PW MOBILE EQUIP PLAN .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 247,000.00 247,000.00 .0

CONTINGENCY

30-48-7999 CONTINGENCY - ROADS .00 .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .0

TOTAL CONTINGENCY .00 .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 29,557.20 48,762.45 631,676.00 582,913.55 7.7



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

ROADS & STREETS

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 12

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (              29,557.20) (              37,681.29) (              79,880.00) (              42,198.71) (  47.2)



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

TRANSPORTATION SDC

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 13

OTHER INCOME

39-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER INCOME .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

FEES

39-38-4940 IMP FEES - TRANSPORT SDC 2,700.00 5,400.00 18,000.00 12,600.00 30.0

TOTAL FEES 2,700.00 5,400.00 18,000.00 12,600.00 30.0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 2,700.00 5,400.00 19,000.00 13,600.00 28.4



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

TRANSPORTATION SDC

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 14

CAPITAL OUTLAY

39-47-7880 CONT MAT - IMP TRANS .00 .00 185,000.00 185,000.00 .0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 185,000.00 185,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 185,000.00 185,000.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 2,700.00 5,400.00 (            166,000.00) (            171,400.00) 3.3



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

WATER OPERATING

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 15

REVENUE

40-34-4540 WATER SERVICE BASE 243,189.18 242,955.15 1,215,040.00 972,084.85 20.0

40-34-4550 NEW WATER CONNECTIONS 600.00 900.00 28,250.00 27,350.00 3.2

40-34-4560 WATER MASTER PLAN 12,818.16 12,828.29 74,375.00 61,546.71 17.3

TOTAL REVENUE 256,607.34 256,683.44 1,317,665.00 1,060,981.56 19.5

INTEREST & MISC

40-36-4120 INT - WATER OP .00 .00 5,500.00 5,500.00 .0

40-36-4150 MISC RCPTS - WTR OP FUND 2,265.00 2,265.00 2,825,800.00 2,823,535.00 .1

TOTAL INTEREST & MISC 2,265.00 2,265.00 2,831,300.00 2,829,035.00 .1

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 258,872.34 258,948.44 4,148,965.00 3,890,016.56 6.2



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

WATER OPERATING

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 16

PERSONNEL SERVICES

40-41-5054 CODE ENFORCEMENT .00 .00 2,338.00 2,338.00 .0

40-41-5055 MAINT WKR WAGE - WATER OP 8,018.83 16,364.22 112,500.00 96,135.78 14.6

40-41-5056 EXTRA LABOR - WTR OP .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

40-41-5057 OFFICE ASSISTANT WAGES - WTR O 10,368.59 20,850.87 121,443.00 100,592.13 17.2

40-41-5058 SUPER PUB WKS - WTR OP .00 .00 49,031.00 49,031.00 .0

40-41-5059 PLANT OPERATOR - WATER OP 8,586.87 17,395.74 96,078.00 78,682.26 18.1

40-41-5064 STAND BY - WTR .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

40-41-5065 OVERTIME - WTR OP 337.82 1,300.68 14,000.00 12,699.32 9.3

40-41-5067 EMERGENCY SERVICES .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

40-41-5075 ACCRUED VAC - WATER OP .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

40-41-5082 CTY MANAGER - WTR OP 949.99 1,899.98 11,970.00 10,070.02 15.9

40-41-5085 MAYOR & COUNCIL STIPEND 75.00 150.00 1,400.00 1,250.00 10.7

40-41-5152 PAYROLL EXP - WTR OP 14,953.50 32,990.29 289,633.00 256,642.71 11.4

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 43,290.60 90,951.78 708,393.00 617,441.22 12.8

MATERIALS & SERVICES

40-45-6110 ELECTRICITY 2,638.38 2,684.00 36,500.00 33,816.00 7.4

40-45-6455 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

40-45-6520 BUILDING MAINT 86.00 86.00 2,000.00 1,914.00 4.3

40-45-6530 TELEPHONE 1,630.36 1,961.71 12,000.00 10,038.29 16.4

40-45-6534 PLANT CHEMICALS & SUPPLIES 1,339.00 1,969.78 35,000.00 33,030.22 5.6

40-45-6551 ADMIN & BILLING 2,085.05 3,324.45 19,000.00 15,675.55 17.5

40-45-6570 INS-VEHICLE, LIAB, EQUIP, BLDG 24,237.07 24,237.07 29,000.00 4,762.93 83.6

40-45-6574 AUDIT .00 .00 11,000.00 11,000.00 .0

40-45-6580 FUEL & OIL 1,129.62 1,129.62 10,000.00 8,870.38 11.3

40-45-6667 STORM DAMAGE REPAIR .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

40-45-6690 VEHICLE MAINT, SUPP & REP 23.28 453.51 13,500.00 13,046.49 3.4

40-45-6745 REQUIRED TESTING .00 1,662.00 9,000.00 7,338.00 18.5

40-45-6750 SYSTEM MAINT & SUPP 13,012.69 14,075.98 63,000.00 48,924.02 22.3

40-45-6831 DUES .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

40-45-6850 ATTORNEY .00 .00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .0

40-45-6851 ENGINEERING .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

40-45-6915 TRAVEL & TRAINING-STAFF .00 .00 4,500.00 4,500.00 .0

40-45-6945 METER READERS .00 .00 9,540.00 9,540.00 .0

40-45-6951 ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

TOTAL MATERIALS & SERVICES 46,181.45 51,584.12 272,540.00 220,955.88 18.9

CAPITAL OUTLAY

40-47-7601 IMPROVEMENT & NEW LINE .00 .00 3,010,000.00 3,010,000.00 .0

40-47-7602 WATER CAPITAL OUTLAY 7,520.00 7,520.00 175,000.00 167,480.00 4.3

40-47-7603 WATER CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 40,000.00 40,000.00 .0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 7,520.00 7,520.00 3,225,000.00 3,217,480.00 .2



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

WATER OPERATING

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 17

CONTINGENCY

40-48-7999 CONTINGENCY - WTR .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

TOTAL CONTINGENCY .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

TRANSFERS

40-49-8027 TO - CC - CH OPERATING .00 .00 45,000.00 45,000.00 .0

40-49-8045 TO -WMP FUND .00 .00 300,000.00 300,000.00 .0

TOTAL TRANSFERS .00 .00 345,000.00 345,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 96,992.05 150,055.90 4,580,933.00 4,430,877.10 3.3

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 161,880.29 108,892.54 (            431,968.00) (            540,860.54) 25.2



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

WATER MASTER PLAN

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 18

OTHER INCOME

42-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME .00 .00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER INCOME .00 .00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .0

TRANSFERS

42-39-4030 TIF - WATER OP .00 .00 300,000.00 300,000.00 .0

TOTAL TRANSFERS .00 .00 300,000.00 300,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 .00 312,000.00 312,000.00 .0



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

WATER MASTER PLAN

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 19

CAPITAL OUTLAY

42-47-7555 WMP - IMPLIMENTATION PROJECTS 6,868.98 6,868.98 550,000.00 543,131.02 1.3

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 6,868.98 6,868.98 550,000.00 543,131.02 1.3

CONTINGENCY

42-48-7999 WATER MASTER PLAN CONTINGENCY .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

TOTAL CONTINGENCY .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 6,868.98 6,868.98 580,000.00 573,131.02 1.2

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (                6,868.98) (                6,868.98) (            268,000.00) (            261,131.02) (    2.6)



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

WATER DEBT SERVICE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 20

UTILITY BILLING

47-34-4550 WATER DEBT REVENUE 25,616.34 25,636.71 148,650.00 123,013.29 17.3

TOTAL UTILITY BILLING 25,616.34 25,636.71 148,650.00 123,013.29 17.3

OTHER INCOME

47-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER INCOME .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 25,616.34 25,636.71 149,850.00 124,213.29 17.1



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

WATER DEBT SERVICE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 21

DEBT SERVICE

47-49-8512 NEDONNA BEACH WTR LINE - PRINC .00 .00 205,000.00 205,000.00 .0

47-49-8520 WATER PLANT DS - PRINC .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .00 100.0

47-49-8521 WATER PLANT DS - INT .00 4,500.00 8,650.00 4,150.00 52.0

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE .00 34,500.00 243,650.00 209,150.00 14.2

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 34,500.00 243,650.00 209,150.00 14.2

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 25,616.34 (                8,863.29) (              93,800.00) (              84,936.71) (    9.5)



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

WATER SDC FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 22

OTHER INCOME

49-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER INCOME .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .0

WATER SDC FEES

49-38-4935 REIMB FEES - WTR SDC FUND 1,104.00 1,656.00 9,800.00 8,144.00 16.9

49-38-4940 IMP FEES - WTR SDC FND 11,850.00 17,775.00 82,000.00 64,225.00 21.7

TOTAL WATER SDC FEES 12,954.00 19,431.00 91,800.00 72,369.00 21.2

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 12,954.00 19,431.00 93,000.00 73,569.00 20.9



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

WATER SDC FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 23

CAPITAL OUTLAY

49-47-7880 CONT MAT - IMP WTR .00 .00 310,000.00 310,000.00 .0

49-47-7885 CONT MAT - REIMB WTR .00 .00 225,000.00 225,000.00 .0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 535,000.00 535,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 535,000.00 535,000.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 12,954.00 19,431.00 (            442,000.00) (            461,431.00) 4.4



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

SEWER OPERATING FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 24

UTILITY BILLING

50-34-4640 SEWER SERVICE BASE 160,536.15 160,682.57 769,000.00 608,317.43 20.9

50-34-4650 NEW SEWER CONNECTIONS 440.00 440.00 17,250.00 16,810.00 2.6

50-34-4660 SEWER MASTER PLAN 13,765.38 13,783.35 82,000.00 68,216.65 16.8

TOTAL UTILITY BILLING 174,741.53 174,905.92 868,250.00 693,344.08 20.1

OTHER INCOME

50-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME .00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00 .0

50-36-4150 MISC RECEIPTS - SEWER .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER INCOME .00 .00 16,000.00 16,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 174,741.53 174,905.92 884,250.00 709,344.08 19.8



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

SEWER OPERATING FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 25

PERSONNEL SERVICES

50-41-5055 MAINT WORKER WAGES 7,873.31 16,061.89 110,075.00 94,013.11 14.6

50-41-5056 EXTRA LABOR WAGES .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

50-41-5057 OFFICE ASST WAGE 10,368.59 20,850.86 121,441.00 100,590.14 17.2

50-41-5058 SUPER PUB WORKS .00 .00 39,508.00 39,508.00 .0

50-41-5059 PLANT OP WAGES 7,812.77 15,847.54 98,657.00 82,809.46 16.1

50-41-5064 STANDBY - SEWER .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

50-41-5065 OVERTIME SEWER 337.82 1,300.68 7,000.00 5,699.32 18.6

50-41-5075 ACCRUED VAC - COMP TIME .00 .00 8,000.00 8,000.00 .0

50-41-5082 CITY MANAGER WAGES 949.99 1,899.98 11,970.00 10,070.02 15.9

50-41-5085 MAYOR & COUNCIL STIPEND 75.00 150.00 1,500.00 1,350.00 10.0

50-41-5152 PAYROLL EXP - SEWER 14,446.10 31,153.15 280,462.00 249,308.85 11.1

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 41,863.58 87,264.10 682,613.00 595,348.90 12.8

MATERIALS & SERVICES

50-45-6110 ELECTRICITY - SEWER 2,352.54 2,352.54 32,000.00 29,647.46 7.4

50-45-6455 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT  .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

50-45-6520 BLDG MAINT - SEWER 22.97 22.97 3,500.00 3,477.03 .7

50-45-6530 TELEPHONE & TELEMETRY 794.82 927.79 6,500.00 5,572.21 14.3

50-45-6534 PLANT CHEMICALS & SUP 9,438.93 14,823.10 45,000.00 30,176.90 32.9

50-45-6551 ADMIN & BILLING 1,063.88 2,266.91 25,000.00 22,733.09 9.1

50-45-6570 INS - VEHICLE, LIAB, EQUIP, BL 39,100.71 39,100.71 40,000.00 899.29 97.8

50-45-6574 AUDIT - SEWER .00 .00 11,000.00 11,000.00 .0

50-45-6580 FUEL & OIL 1,129.62 1,129.62 15,000.00 13,870.38 7.5

50-45-6690 VEHICLE MAINT, SUP & REP 311.47 1,011.68 13,000.00 11,988.32 7.8

50-45-6740 I & I WORK .00 .00 26,000.00 26,000.00 .0

50-45-6745 REQUIRED TESTING .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

50-45-6750 SYSTEM MAINT & SUPPLY 6,095.86 7,529.23 65,000.00 57,470.77 11.6

50-45-6831 DUES .00 .00 700.00 700.00 .0

50-45-6850 ATTORNEY 423.00 423.00 2,500.00 2,077.00 16.9

50-45-6851 ENGINEERING .00 .00 25,200.00 25,200.00 .0

50-45-6915 TRAVEL & TRAINING - STAFF 598.84 598.84 5,000.00 4,401.16 12.0

50-45-6945 METER READERS 2,595.00 2,595.00 6,400.00 3,805.00 40.6

50-45-6951 ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

TOTAL MATERIALS & SERVICES 63,927.64 72,781.39 325,300.00 252,518.61 22.4

CAPITAL OUTLAY

50-47-7602 PW MOBILE EQUIP REPLACE PLAN .00 .00 40,000.00 40,000.00 .0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 40,000.00 40,000.00 .0



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

SEWER OPERATING FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 26

CONTINGENCY

50-48-7999 CONTINGENCY - SEWER .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

TOTAL CONTINGENCY .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

TRANSFERS

50-49-8027 TRNSFR TO - GF CH OPERATING .00 .00 45,000.00 45,000.00 .0

50-49-8033 TRNSFR TO - SEWER MASTER PLAN .00 .00 75,000.00 75,000.00 .0

TOTAL TRANSFERS .00 .00 120,000.00 120,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 105,791.22 160,045.49 1,197,913.00 1,037,867.51 13.4

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 68,950.31 14,860.43 (            313,663.00) (            328,523.43) 4.7



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

SEWER MASTER PLAN

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 27

OTHER INCOME

52-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER INCOME .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

TRANSFERS

52-39-4032 TRNSFR IN - FROM SEWER OPER .00 .00 75,000.00 75,000.00 .0

TOTAL TRANSFERS .00 .00 75,000.00 75,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 .00 84,000.00 84,000.00 .0



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

SEWER MASTER PLAN

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 28

CAPITAL OUTLAY

52-47-7555 WWMP-IMPLIMENTATION PROJECTS .00 .00 60,000.00 60,000.00 .0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 60,000.00 60,000.00 .0

CONTINGENCY

52-48-7999 CONTINGENCY - SWR .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

TOTAL CONTINGENCY .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 69,000.00 69,000.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00 .0



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

SEWER DEBT SERVICE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 29

UTILITY BILLING

56-34-4650 SEWER DEBT REVENUE 42,905.20 42,961.20 245,000.00 202,038.80 17.5

TOTAL UTILITY BILLING 42,905.20 42,961.20 245,000.00 202,038.80 17.5

OTHER INCOME

56-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME .00 .00 6,000.00 6,000.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER INCOME .00 .00 6,000.00 6,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 42,905.20 42,961.20 251,000.00 208,038.80 17.1



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

SEWER DEBT SERVICE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 30

DEBT SERVICE

56-49-8510 WW OUTFALL LOAN PRINCIPLE .00 200,000.00 200,000.00 .00 100.0

56-49-8511 WW-OUTFALL LOAN INTEREST .00 6,075.00 9,375.00 3,300.00 64.8

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE .00 206,075.00 209,375.00 3,300.00 98.4

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 206,075.00 209,375.00 3,300.00 98.4

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 42,905.20 (            163,113.80) 41,625.00 204,738.80 (391.9)



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

SEWER SDC

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 31

OTHER INCOME

59-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME .00 .00 3,200.00 3,200.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER INCOME .00 .00 3,200.00 3,200.00 .0

FEES

59-38-4935 REIMB FEES - SEWER SDC 2,956.00 2,956.00 25,000.00 22,044.00 11.8

59-38-4940 IMP FEES - SEWER SDC 5,290.00 5,290.00 65,000.00 59,710.00 8.1

TOTAL FEES 8,246.00 8,246.00 90,000.00 81,754.00 9.2

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 8,246.00 8,246.00 93,200.00 84,954.00 8.9



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

SEWER SDC

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 32

CAPITAL OUTLAY

59-47-7880 CONTR MAT - IMPROVE .00 .00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .0

59-47-7885 CONTR MAT - REIMBURSE .00 .00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 200,000.00 200,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 200,000.00 200,000.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 8,246.00 8,246.00 (            106,800.00) (            115,046.00) 7.7



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

TRANSIENT ROOM TAX

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 33

ROOM TAX REVENUES

80-31-4710 TRT REVENUE 5% .00 .00 1,200,000.00 1,200,000.00 .0

80-31-4711 TRT REVENUE 2% - ADV .00 .00 480,000.00 480,000.00 .0

80-31-4712 TRT REVENUE 2% - CTY .00 .00 480,000.00 480,000.00 .0

80-31-4713 TRT REVENUE 1% - CTY .00 .00 240,000.00 240,000.00 .0

TOTAL ROOM TAX REVENUES .00 .00 2,400,000.00 2,400,000.00 .0

OTHER INCOME

80-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME - TRT .00 .00 7,500.00 7,500.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER INCOME .00 .00 7,500.00 7,500.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 .00 2,407,500.00 2,407,500.00 .0



DRAFT

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023

TRANSIENT ROOM TAX

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/06/2023     11:35AM       PAGE: 34

MATERIALS & SERVICES

80-45-6533 ADVERTISING - MEDIA AGT 23,861.81 24,136.81 197,211.00 173,074.19 12.2

80-45-6534 ADVERTISING - WEBSITE CTY .00 2,357.10 75,000.00 72,642.90 3.1

80-45-6535 ADVERTISING/TOURISM AGT .00 1,680.00 55,000.00 53,320.00 3.1

80-45-6536 ROCKAWAY LIONS EVENTS .00 1,218.00 2,000.00 782.00 60.9

80-45-6537 FIREWORKS 1,680.00 33,238.00 75,000.00 41,762.00 44.3

80-45-6538 TOURISM PROMO AND FACILITIES .00 400.00 85,000.00 84,600.00 .5

80-45-6634 ADVERTISING - OTHER CTY .00 .00 95,000.00 95,000.00 .0

TOTAL MATERIALS & SERVICES 25,541.81 63,029.91 584,211.00 521,181.09 10.8

CONTINGENCY

80-46-6999 OPERATING CONTINGENCY - TRT .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

TOTAL CONTINGENCY .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

TRANSFERS

80-49-8024 TO - GF POLICE .00 .00 344,921.00 344,921.00 .0

80-49-8025 TO - GENERAL FUND .00 .00 124,405.00 124,405.00 .0

80-49-8026 TO - FIRE TRK RES .00 .00 371,607.00 371,607.00 .0

80-49-8036 TO -  P &  E RESERVE .00 .00 1,190,481.00 1,190,481.00 .0

80-49-8041 TO - ROADS & STREETS .00 .00 370,926.00 370,926.00 .0

80-49-8044 TO - GF CITY BEAUTIF .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

80-49-8046 TO - GF FIRE .00 .00 421,825.00 421,825.00 .0

TOTAL TRANSFERS .00 .00 2,829,165.00 2,829,165.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 25,541.81 63,029.91 3,423,376.00 3,360,346.09 1.8

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (              25,541.81) (              63,029.91) (         1,015,876.00) (            952,846.09) (    6.2)







 

 

5995 Long Prairie Rd. Tillamook, OR  97141                                                          503-842-2561                                                               Tillamooksheriff.com 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
CONSERVATORS OF THE PEACE  

Sheriff Joshua Brown  

Rockaway Beach Patrol  
Month of August 2023  

The last full month of summer 2023 has come to a close. August kept pace with the other summer 

months, keeping deputies busy with a variety of calls for service. Right at the end of August, the speed limit on 

the north end of town was changed. It is now posted as 30 MPH until slightly north of N 7th Ave. This is the 

result of a traffic study conducted by ODOT last fall. Deputies will be working towards getting drivers 

accustomed to the new limit. 

 Notable calls for service this month include a reported theft of a bank deposit from a local business. 

The suspect entered the business during the day and took the bank deposit that was about to be taken to the 

bank. There were several thousand dollars lost and unfortunately, we have no suspect information at this 

time. 

 There were multiple calls involving a person trespassing in the S. Coral Street area. On two occasions, 

the suspect was arrested. This case is open pending review from the District Attorney.   

 Deputies responded to a report of a domestic disturbance between adult siblings. One of the people 

involved left prior to our arrival. During the investigation, probable cause was developed for the arrest of the 

individual that fled the scene. This case has been referred to the District Attorney’s office. 

On a happier note, we took a report on a stolen vehicle in town. It was quickly learned that the 

reporting person had simply forgotten where they had parked their car. We don’t often get calls where it 

seems like the worst possible thing has happened and it turns out as well as this. These are the calls where 

everyone can breathe a quick sigh of relief and maybe even have a slight chuckle.  

Other call numbers are noted in the statistics report provided. 

 

 

Undersheriff Matt Kelly  

    

 

 

 



Incident Address Incident Address City Incident Date And Time Incident Type Incident Unit ID

400 S 3RD AVE Rockaway Beach 08/01/2023 09:27:07 BUSINESS CHECK 210

300 S 3RD AVE Rockaway Beach 08/01/2023 09:29:02 Contact 210

HIGHWAY 101 S  / E WASHINGTON ST Rockaway Beach 08/01/2023 13:35:38 Traffic Stop 210

S 2ND AVE  / S PACIFIC ST Rockaway Beach 08/01/2023 19:21:55 CAMI 225

1040 NE 12TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/01/2023 19:45:35 Runaway 225

1021 BREAKER AVE Rockaway Beach 08/01/2023 20:04:47 Missing Person 225

NW 23RD AVE  / HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/01/2023 22:40:26 Fireworks 225

123 S DOLPHIN ST Rockaway Beach 08/02/2023 08:11:15 Harassment 210

480 HIGHWAY 101 S Rockaway Beach 08/02/2023 11:43:45 Civil Service 210

24705 HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/02/2023 13:19:38 BUSINESS CHECK 210

45.6340849~-123.942003 Rockaway Beach 08/02/2023 14:14:53 Incom 911 210

HIGHWAY 101 N  / LAKE BLVD Rockaway Beach 08/02/2023 15:20:38 Traffic Stop 210

HIGHWAY 101 N  / LAKE BLVD Rockaway Beach 08/02/2023 15:20:38 Traffic Stop 216

HIGHWAY 101 N  / LAKE BLVD Rockaway Beach 08/02/2023 15:20:38 Traffic Stop 215

HIGHWAY 101 S  / E WASHINGTON ST Rockaway Beach 08/02/2023 18:40:43 MVA 217

8305 STARK ST Rockaway Beach 08/02/2023 19:20:31 Assist 225

373 NORTHSLOPE WAY Rockaway Beach 08/02/2023 23:53:11 Incom 911 217

Rockaway Beach 08/03/2023 09:49:37 Rec Accident 222

Rockaway Beach 08/03/2023 09:49:37 Rec Accident 215

Rockaway Beach 08/03/2023 09:49:37 Rec Accident 213

S MILLER ST  / S 1ST AVE Rockaway Beach 08/03/2023 20:02:22 Property 215

276 HIGHWAY 101 S Rockaway Beach 08/04/2023 09:53:21 Assist 222

276 HIGHWAY 101 S Rockaway Beach 08/04/2023 09:53:21 Assist 223

1072 FRANCIS ST Rockaway Beach 08/04/2023 10:11:20 Noise 222

1072 FRANCIS ST Rockaway Beach 08/04/2023 10:11:20 Noise 215

198 N PACIFIC ST Rockaway Beach 08/04/2023 18:49:39 Missing Person 215

979 S ISLAND ST Rockaway Beach 08/04/2023 19:51:43 Civil Service 215

670 HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/05/2023 03:17:29 Contact 229

370 N OCEAN ST Rockaway Beach 08/05/2023 07:13:34 Assist 222

1066 S EASY ST Rockaway Beach 08/05/2023 08:20:51 Animal 222

400 S 3RD AVE Rockaway Beach 08/05/2023 17:14:59 Rescue 216

400 S 3RD AVE Rockaway Beach 08/05/2023 17:14:59 Rescue 222

400 S 3RD AVE Rockaway Beach 08/05/2023 17:14:59 Rescue 215

26205 HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/06/2023 09:40:19 Civil 210

384 S BEACON ST Rockaway Beach 08/06/2023 12:01:45 Harassment 210

SECTION LINE ST  / BEACH DR Rockaway Beach 08/06/2023 14:38:24 Incom 911 210

648 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/06/2023 15:19:30 Unwanted 210

HIGHWAY 101 N  / PANSY ST Rockaway Beach 08/06/2023 20:31:08 Traffic Stop 225

HIGHWAY 101 S  / S 4TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/06/2023 20:46:58 Traffic Stop 225

HIGHWAY 101 N  / BEACH ST Rockaway Beach 08/06/2023 21:09:19 Assist 225

8335 STARK ST Rockaway Beach 08/06/2023 21:33:15 Burglary 225

8335 STARK ST Rockaway Beach 08/06/2023 22:22:56 Follow Up 225

N PACIFIC ST  / N 5TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/06/2023 23:44:46 80 225

384 S BEACON ST Rockaway Beach 08/07/2023 17:18:33 Follow Up 225

1115 BREAKER AVE Rockaway Beach 08/07/2023 20:55:13 Suspicious 225

590 PACIFIC VIEW DR Rockaway Beach 08/08/2023 08:56:37 Noise 210

507 CEDAR CREEK CIR Rockaway Beach 08/08/2023 14:05:04 Ordinance Violation 210

276 HIGHWAY 101 S Rockaway Beach 08/08/2023 14:13:07 Follow Up 210

654 S ANCHOR ST Rockaway Beach 08/08/2023 14:38:53 Animal 210

654 S ANCHOR ST Rockaway Beach 08/08/2023 14:38:53 Animal 225

1022 NE 12TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/08/2023 17:21:24 Follow Up 220

1022 NE 12TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/08/2023 17:21:24 Follow Up 223

1022 NE 12TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/08/2023 17:42:43 Follow Up 220

1022 NE 12TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/08/2023 17:42:43 Follow Up 223

375 N NEPTUNE ST Rockaway Beach 08/08/2023 17:51:22 Welfare check 225

1ST AVE  / VICTORIA ST Rockaway Beach 08/09/2023 11:22:16 Animal 222

1ST AVE  / VICTORIA ST Rockaway Beach 08/09/2023 11:22:16 Animal 215

Staff Report: Sheriff's Office Incidents



PACIFIC ST  / SHAND AVE Rockaway Beach 08/09/2023 20:52:53 Suspicious 217

891 N PACIFIC ST Rockaway Beach 08/09/2023 23:00:13 Alarm 217

506 HIGHWAY 101 S Rockaway Beach 08/10/2023 10:51:52 Welfare check 222

S HARBOR ST  / SHELDON LN Rockaway Beach 08/10/2023 15:06:49 Assist 222

S HARBOR ST  / SHELDON LN Rockaway Beach 08/10/2023 15:27:47 Follow Up 222

215 N 3RD AVE Rockaway Beach 08/10/2023 21:23:33 Incom 911 217

655 S PACIFIC ST Rockaway Beach 08/11/2023 04:36:36 Incom 911 222

982 S ISLAND ST Rockaway Beach 08/11/2023 10:40:43 Civil 222

982 S ISLAND ST Rockaway Beach 08/11/2023 10:49:32 Civil 222

958 S ISLAND ST Rockaway Beach 08/11/2023 10:50:46 Civil 222

1040 NE 12TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/11/2023 11:04:43 Civil 222

1094 NE 12TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/11/2023 11:08:08 Civil 222

349 N CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/11/2023 11:41:24 CAMI 220

975 S EASY ST Rockaway Beach 08/11/2023 13:45:10 Unwanted 215

1040 NE 12TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/11/2023 14:07:44 Civil Service 215

970 S ISLAND ST Rockaway Beach 08/11/2023 14:17:47 Civil Service 215

979 S ISLAND ST Rockaway Beach 08/11/2023 14:20:13 Civil Service 215

S MILLER ST  / S 1ST AVE Rockaway Beach 08/11/2023 15:00:43 Animal 215

9465 NE 18TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/11/2023 19:20:31 Traffic 215

602 S 2ND AVE Rockaway Beach 08/11/2023 23:44:48 Disturbance 217

602 S 2ND AVE Rockaway Beach 08/11/2023 23:44:48 Disturbance 229

217 S DOLPHIN ST Rockaway Beach 08/12/2023 08:53:53 Civil 222

217 S DOLPHIN ST Rockaway Beach 08/12/2023 08:53:53 Civil 215

807 BREAKER AVE Rockaway Beach 08/12/2023 12:42:29 Follow Up 215

615 N PACIFIC ST Rockaway Beach 08/12/2023 14:15:44 Unwanted 216

615 N PACIFIC ST Rockaway Beach 08/12/2023 14:15:44 Unwanted 215

1040 NE 12TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/12/2023 19:47:51 Civil Service 215

970 S ISLAND ST Rockaway Beach 08/12/2023 19:57:54 Civil Service 215

979 S ISLAND ST Rockaway Beach 08/12/2023 20:05:02 Civil Service 215

1040 NE 12TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/13/2023 10:55:38 Civil Service 210

101 NW 11TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/13/2023 12:01:10 Incom 911 210

Rockaway Beach 08/13/2023 17:31:44 Welfare check 217

LAKE BLVD  / NE 23RD AVE Rockaway Beach 08/14/2023 02:03:25 Assault 217

648 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/14/2023 09:09:45 Civil 210

648 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/14/2023 09:48:06 Follow Up 210

104 HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/14/2023 11:29:18 Assist 210

NEDONNA AVE  / PARK ST Rockaway Beach 08/14/2023 12:00:41 Road Hazard 210

NEDONNA AVE  / PARK ST Rockaway Beach 08/14/2023 12:00:41 Road Hazard 210

17975 OCEAN BLVD Rockaway Beach 08/14/2023 12:25:46 Alarm 210

654 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/14/2023 15:27:19 Info 214

654 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/14/2023 21:20:40 Civil 220

1040 NE 12TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/15/2023 04:52:10 Suicidal 214

603 S EASY ST Rockaway Beach 08/15/2023 08:43:37 Follow Up 210

654 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/15/2023 10:22:00 Ordinance Violation 210

645 S ANCHOR ST Rockaway Beach 08/15/2023 11:56:40 Animal 210

399 N CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/15/2023 12:53:53 BUSINESS CHECK 210

24705 HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/15/2023 13:13:06 BUSINESS CHECK 210

Rockaway Beach 08/15/2023 17:23:19 Abuse/Neglect 225

1040 NE 12TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/15/2023 19:24:24 Civil Service 225

S 6TH AVE  / HIGHWAY 101 S Rockaway Beach 08/15/2023 19:57:38 Traffic Stop 225

NE 12TH AVE  / HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/15/2023 20:54:11 Traffic Stop 225

9595 NE 17TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/16/2023 02:43:14 Mental 225

504 N 3RD AVE Rockaway Beach 08/16/2023 08:02:50 BUSINESS CHECK 210

975 S EASY ST Rockaway Beach 08/16/2023 13:00:36 Trespass 222

975 S EASY ST Rockaway Beach 08/16/2023 13:00:36 Trespass 215

165 S MILLER ST Rockaway Beach 08/16/2023 14:06:43 Civil 215

8440 MARIGOLD ST Rockaway Beach 08/16/2023 14:37:15 Follow Up 220

165 S MILLER ST Rockaway Beach 08/16/2023 16:03:43 Follow Up 215

Staff Report: Sheriff's Office Incidents



419 S ANCHOR ST Rockaway Beach 08/17/2023 01:23:51 Welfare check 217

480 HIGHWAY 101 S Rockaway Beach 08/17/2023 12:52:23 Civil 222

HIGHWAY 101 S  / S 6TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/17/2023 16:22:08 Traffic Stop 215

S 7TH AVE  / BREAKER AVE Rockaway Beach 08/17/2023 23:20:29 Suspicious 217

27500 HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/18/2023 13:55:09 Civil 222

194 HIGHWAY 101 S Rockaway Beach 08/18/2023 14:36:23 Noise 215

654 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/19/2023 06:37:45 Disturbance 222

654 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/19/2023 06:37:45 Disturbance 213

450 HIGHWAY 101 S Rockaway Beach 08/19/2023 16:24:48 UUMV 215

507 CEDAR CREEK CIR Rockaway Beach 08/19/2023 16:36:22 Noise 215

133 N HARBOR ST Rockaway Beach 08/19/2023 17:42:32 Welfare check 215

S MILLER ST  / S 1ST AVE Rockaway Beach 08/19/2023 18:15:44 Property 215

507 CEDAR CREEK CIR Rockaway Beach 08/20/2023 10:10:14 Noise 210

24705 HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/20/2023 12:43:49 BUSINESS CHECK 210

400 S 3RD AVE Rockaway Beach 08/20/2023 13:30:16 BUSINESS CHECK 210

226 S PACIFIC ST Rockaway Beach 08/20/2023 14:00:10 Man Down 210

276 HIGHWAY 101 S Rockaway Beach 08/21/2023 08:22:30 Property 210

654 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/21/2023 11:01:42 Trespass 210

384 S BEACON ST Rockaway Beach 08/21/2023 11:05:08 Abuse/Neglect 210

8440 MARIGOLD ST Rockaway Beach 08/21/2023 12:13:02 Follow Up 220

9465 NE 18TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/21/2023 13:02:43 UEMV 210

276 S DOLPHIN ST Rockaway Beach 08/21/2023 13:54:11 Disturbance 210

276 S DOLPHIN ST Rockaway Beach 08/21/2023 13:54:11 Disturbance 214

276 HIGHWAY 101 S Rockaway Beach 08/21/2023 16:56:40 Assist 210

HIGHWAY 101 S  / S 2ND AVE Rockaway Beach 08/21/2023 19:58:55 Traffic Stop 225

HIGHWAY 101 N  / LAKE BLVD Rockaway Beach 08/22/2023 00:25:37 Contact 225

152 NW 13TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/22/2023 01:41:15 Suspicious 225

SHAND AVE  / HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/22/2023 02:18:15 Traffic Stop 225

HIGHWAY 101 S  / S 6TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/22/2023 07:47:54 7 210

400 S 3RD AVE Rockaway Beach 08/22/2023 08:31:59 Suspicious 210

N MILLER ST  / N 8TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/22/2023 08:53:41 Traffic Stop 210

165 S MILLER ST Rockaway Beach 08/22/2023 11:50:04 Civil 210

24705 HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/22/2023 13:10:18 BUSINESS CHECK 210

7850 PINE BEACH LP Rockaway Beach 08/22/2023 13:16:23 Unknown 210

165 S MILLER ST Rockaway Beach 08/22/2023 14:57:35 Court Violation 210

HIGHWAY 101 N  / N 3RD AVE Rockaway Beach 08/22/2023 23:20:16 Traffic Stop 220

HIGHWAY 101 N  / N 3RD AVE Rockaway Beach 08/22/2023 23:20:16 Traffic Stop 225

507 CEDAR CREEK CIR Rockaway Beach 08/23/2023 15:05:32 Noise 215

194 HIGHWAY 101 S Rockaway Beach 08/23/2023 21:27:53 Man Down 217

603 S EASY ST Rockaway Beach 08/24/2023 13:11:55 Civil Service 215

276 HIGHWAY 101 S Rockaway Beach 08/24/2023 14:02:25 Property 215

S MILLER ST  / S 3RD AVE Rockaway Beach 08/25/2023 19:52:15 Animal 217

1059 BREAKER AVE Rockaway Beach 08/25/2023 20:33:32 Alarm 229

625 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/25/2023 21:14:54 Incom 911 217

625 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/25/2023 21:14:54 Incom 911 229

LAKE BLVD  / HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/26/2023 00:04:39 Traffic Stop 217

19095 VINCENT LN Rockaway Beach 08/26/2023 11:59:26 Crim Misch 216

507 CEDAR CREEK CIR Rockaway Beach 08/26/2023 12:10:05 Noise 216

648 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/26/2023 12:32:37 Trespass 216

648 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/26/2023 15:30:30 Trespass 216

26150 NEDONNA AVE Rockaway Beach 08/26/2023 17:22:01 Trespass 217

654 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/26/2023 20:20:35 Civil 217

648 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/26/2023 22:40:28 Assist 217

24705 HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/27/2023 11:18:33 BUSINESS CHECK 210

850 N PACIFIC ST Rockaway Beach 08/27/2023 12:56:44 57 210

400 S 3RD AVE Rockaway Beach 08/27/2023 13:15:58 BUSINESS CHECK 210

399 N CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/27/2023 14:45:55 BUSINESS CHECK 210

220 S ANCHOR ST Rockaway Beach 08/27/2023 15:20:29 Hit & Run 210

Staff Report: Sheriff's Office Incidents



8800 BEACH ST Rockaway Beach 08/28/2023 11:05:49 Assist 214

ROCKAWAY Rockaway Beach 08/28/2023 11:44:47 Theft 214

276 HIGHWAY 101 S Rockaway Beach 08/28/2023 18:44:52 Follow Up 225

967 HARRIMAN AVE Rockaway Beach 08/29/2023 08:03:47 Harassment 210

105 NW 15TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/29/2023 08:47:49 Welfare check 210

N 3RD AVE  / HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/29/2023 10:57:53 Assist 210

24705 HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/29/2023 13:07:47 Follow Up 223

HIGHWAY 101 S  / S 6TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/29/2023 13:10:42 Assist 210

24705 HIGHWAY 101 N Rockaway Beach 08/29/2023 14:39:02 BUSINESS CHECK 210

HIGHWAY 101 N  / N 8TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/29/2023 15:08:50 Traffic Stop 210

HIGHWAY 101 N  / N 8TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/29/2023 15:34:41 Traffic Stop 210

HIGHWAY 101 N  / N 8TH AVE Rockaway Beach 08/29/2023 15:47:15 Traffic Stop 210

648 S CORAL ST Rockaway Beach 08/30/2023 08:03:11 Civil 210

: 0

Staff Report: Sheriff's Office Incidents



 City of Rockaway Beach, Oregon 
276 S. Highway 101, PO Box 5 

Rockaway Beach, OR 97136 
(503) 374-1752  FAX (503)374-0601 

 

 
 
 

September 6th, 2023 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members, 

 

I appreciate the opportunity to provide an update on the recent developments in the City of Rockaway 

Beach's public works department. 

 

*Water Curtailment Update* 

I'm pleased to report that the recent rainfall has significantly improved the water curtailment situation 

in our city. The increased creek levels have allowed us to relax our water usage restrictions, and we've 

been able to shut down one of our supplemental wells due to the improved conditions. Additionally, our 

efforts in identifying and repairing water service leaks have contributed to a reduction in water demand. 

Last month, we successfully located and fixed multiple water leaks, while also assisting homeowners in 

identifying potential leaks on their property. 

*Road Maintenance* 

Our dedicated public works team continues its essential work, including maintaining gravel roads and 

addressing potholes in paved streets. We recently faced a challenge when Easy Street suffered damage 

from a water main break, but our team efficiently repaired it, optimizing costs through careful asphalt 

preparation. Brush cutting remains a priority, especially along our access roads, which serve as critical 

routes for water and sewer mains in emergencies. I'm pleased to note that the new speed zone signage 

from ODOT has been posted. 

*Parks* 

Our diligent parks maintenance personnel are currently engaged in various tasks to ensure our public 

spaces remain inviting and well-maintained. This includes grass cutting in parks and rights-of-way, brush 

clearing along the boardwalk, routine cleaning and maintenance of restroom facilities, frequent garbage 

collection, downtown litter cleanup, and monitoring and cleanup of dog waste at beach access points 

and parks. We are committed to preserving the quality of our parks for our residents and visitors alike. 

*Sewer* 

Our wastewater treatment plant is embarking on an important project this year involving the 

replacement of two aging sewage pumps, along with associated valves, fittings, and pump bases. Finding 

suitable contractors for this project proved challenging, but after an extensive search, we have identified 

a company that is willing to assist us in this endeavor. We understand the critical nature of this work and 

are committed to ensuring the smooth execution of the project. 



 City of Rockaway Beach, Oregon 
276 S. Highway 101, PO Box 5 

Rockaway Beach, OR 97136 
(503) 374-1752  FAX (503)374-0601 

 

 
 
I want to express my gratitude for your continued support and trust in our efforts to maintain and 

improve the City of Rockaway Beach's infrastructure. If you have any questions or require further 

information regarding any of the mentioned projects, please do not hesitate to reach out. 

 

Dan W. Emerson, Superintendent  

City of Rockaway Beach Public Works   

P: 503.374.0586 / C: 503.457.6094   

PublicWorks@corb.us 

 

mailto:PublicWorks@corb.us


Phone: 888.777.7850
Fax: 888.777.7875
Cell: 785.313.3154

www.clpusa.net

Customer Name:

Sales Representative:

•
•

•
•

•

Blake J. Kaus
Vice President & Director of Leasing 
blakekaus@clpusa.net

January 5, 2024
March 5, 2024

Total:
September 1, 2024

$151,263.00
$285,480.00
$232,829.00
$669,572.00

Chassis
Aerial
Final

The quoted interest rate is valid for 10-days from the date of the proposal. To lock in the interest rate, a credit submission
would be required, and a credit approval attained within the same 10-day period. This financing is to be executed &
funded within 30 days of the date of the proposal or Lessor reserves the right to adjust the interest rate. The proposal is
subject to credit review and approval and mutually acceptable documentation. 

ESCROW STRUCTURE
Date Available

Escrow Funding Date

Interest Earnings in the escrow account have been estimated and used to reduce borrowing cost incurred by the Lessee. 
Premature disbursements or delay in funding to the escrow may result in shortage of funds needed to fulfill vendor 

THERE ARE NO DOCUMENTATION OR CLOSING FEES ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PROPOSAL.

September 7, 2023

Total Available Disbursement

August 8, 2023

Interest Rate:

Option 1

Rockaway Beach, OR

0.183157
4.98% 5.04%

$86,775.75

5.20%

1,019,572.00$     

Community Leasing Partners, a Division of Community First National Bank , is pleased to present the
following financing options for your review and consideration.

6
$131,295.94

Factor:

12

Equipment: One Rosenbauer 78' Viper Aerial

First Payment:

$122,636.77

Payment Frequency:

Amount Financed:

350,000.00$        
-$                   

669,572.00$       

Jonathan Brunton @ General Fire

215 S. Seth Child Road
Manhattan, KS 66502

August 1, 2024
Annual

8
$103,361.20

Term in Years:
Payment:

10

Total Cost:
Down Payment:

Prepayment Discounts:

0.1295990.1543690.196089
5.10%

A Division of Community First National Bank - Member FDIC

This proposal has been prepared assuming the lessee is bank qualified and that the proposed lease qualifies for Federal
Income Tax Exempt Status for the Lessor under Section 103 of the IRS Code.

Thank you for allowing Community Leasing Partners the opportunity to provide this proposal. If you
have any questions regarding the options presented, need additional options, or would like to proceed
with a financing, please contact me at 1-877-525-1776.

Respectively,

http://www.clpusa.net/
mailto:blakekaus@clpusa.net


   
 

Resolution No. 23-1003  Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO 23-1003 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT FOR THE ROCKAWAY 
BEACH FIRE RESCUE DEPARTMENT’S ACQUISITION OF FIRE APPARATUS  

 
WHEREAS, replacement of Engine 21 was identified as a priority in the Rockaway 
Beach Fire Rescue Department Mobile Equipment Replacement Plan adopted by 
Resolution 23-992; and 
 
WHEREAS, a price agreement for firefighting apparatus was competitively awarded to 
Rosenbauer America through the Sourcewell cooperative organization; and 
 
WHEREAS, Rosenbauer America has identified General Fire Apparatus as an 
authorized dealer for their products; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City has identified Community Leasing Partners (a division of 
Community First National Bank) as providing competitive financing rates for the 
acquisition of fire apparatus. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that: 
 
Section 1.  Acquisition of the Rosenbauer replacement fire apparatus will be obtained 

from General Fire Apparatus through a lease purchase agreement with 
Community First National Bank as described in Exhibit A. 

 
Section 2.   The City of Rockaway Beach City Council hereby approves the lease 

purchase agreement with Community First National Bank for acquisition of 
fire apparatus attached as Exhibit A, and authorizes the Mayor to execute 
the contract. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, AND EFFECTIVE THE 13TH 
DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 
 

APPROVED 
 
 
             
        Charles McNeilly, Mayor 
 

ATTEST 
 
 
      
Melissa Thompson, City Recorder 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 1 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 2 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 3 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 4 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 5 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 6 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 7 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 8 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 9 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 10 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 11 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 12 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 13 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 14 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 15 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 16 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 17 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 18 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 19 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 20 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 21 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 22 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 23 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 24 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 25 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 26 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 27 of 28 



Resolution 23-1003: Exhibit A   Page 28 of 28 



Community Grant Applications 2023
Organization Non-Profit # Contact Person Requested Amount Project/Use for Funds Letter Rcvd

Sea Turtles Forever.org 20-1575608 Marc Ward 20,000.00$                   Beach filtration P

Meals for Seniors, Inc. 90-0097197 Theresa Bruneau 10,000.00$                   
Food procurement & specialized 

containers for delivery
P

Friends of the Rockaway Beach Library 93-122455 Jean Scholtz 8,200.36$                     
Chair reupolstery; refinish deck balusters; 

move flagpole
P

Rockaway Beach Volunteers none
Sandra Johnson/

Robin Swain
2,000.00$                     

Purchase of t-shirts, sweatshirts, hats and 

equipment for core volunteers
P

Rockaway Beach Writers Rendezvous none Don Backman 5,000.00$                     Rockaway Writers Rendezvous P

Brittney Bakes for-profit Brittney Hudson 7,000.00$                     
Expansion of space and equipment to 

provide classes for kids
P



Resolution No. 23-1004  Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO 23-1004 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AWARDS FOR THE 2023 COMMUNITY GRANT 
PROGRAM 

 
WHEREAS, the City appropriated $60,000 for the 2023 Community Grant Program in 
the 2023-2024 fiscal year adopted budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Community Grant Program provides funding to non-profit entities and 
organizations that serve the Rockaway Beach community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council shall determine the grant recipients and the dollar amount 
of each grant award based on the grant program evaluation criteria; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council may make further awards after review of the applications 
received; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the applications and determined to award 
the following grants to applicants as specified below. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Rockaway Beach City Council 
hereby awards 2023 Community Grants to the following recipients in the amounts 
specified below: 
 
Recipient: Grant Amount: 
 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, AND EFFECTIVE THE 13TH 
DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 
 

APPROVED 
 
 
             
        Charles McNeilly, Mayor 
 



Resolution No. 23-1004  Page 2 of 2 

ATTEST 
 
 
      
Melissa Thompson, City Recorder 



Resolution No. 23-1005  Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO 23-1005 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AMONG 
THE PARTICIPANTS OF THE JETTY CREEK WORKING GROUP 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Rockaway Beach, Nuveen Natural Capital, Sustainable 
Northwest, North Coast Land Conservancy, and local community representatives, 
collectively known as the Jetty Creek Working Group desire to define through a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) their respective roles and responsibilities in 
order to achieve mutually beneficial outcomes and resources in the lower Jetty Creek 
watershed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Jetty Creek Working Group intends to create a collaborative solution for 
long-term stewardship of the watershed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s primary drinking water source is the Jetty Creek watershed and 
collaborative, sustainable stewardship of the watershed is in the best interest of the 
City; and  
 
WHEREAS, the MOU is neither a fiscal nor a funds obligation document; and  
 
WHEREAS, the MOU identifies the objectives, shared understanding, and roles and 
responsibilities of the members of the Working Group. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Rockaway Beach City Council 
hereby approves the Memorandum of Understanding among the participants of the 
Jetty Creek Working Group, attached as Exhibit A. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, AND EFFECTIVE THE 13TH 
DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 
 

APPROVED 
 
 
             
        Charles McNeilly, Mayor 
 

ATTEST 
 
 
      
Melissa Thompson, City Recorder 



Page 1 of 5 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
  

Among Participants of the Jetty Creek Working Group: 

Nuveen Natural Capital, Sustainable Northwest, 
North Coast Land Conservancy and  

The City of Rockaway Beach 
 
I. PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to further define the respective roles 
and responsibilities of Nuveen Natural Capital, Sustainable Northwest, North Coast Land 
Conservancy, and local community representatives, collectively known as the Jetty Creek Working 
Group (the “Parties”)  in order to achieve mutually beneficial outcomes for the Parties and resources in 

the lower Jetty Creek watershed (in Tillamook County, Oregon) as described in the Jetty Creek 
Working Group Letter of Intent (LOI; attached, dated  July 25, 2019). Moreover, through the Working 
Group and this MOU, the Parties intend to create a collaborative solution for long-term stewardship of 
the watershed, thereby continuing to transform characterization of the watershed from being a 
“problem” to becoming a “collaborative, sustainable solution.” 
 
This MOU is neither a fiscal nor a funds obligation document.  No binding rights or obligations are 
created or implied by this MOU and it is expressly understood that the Parties are not bound to enter 
into or undertake any definitive obligations. Any endeavor involving reimbursement, contribution of 
resources, or transfer of anything of value between the parties to this instrument will be handled in 
accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and procedures, and such endeavors will be outlined in 
separate agreements that will be made in writing by representatives of the Parties and independently 
authorized. 
 
II. TERM 
 
This Memorandum will be effective upon execution and remain in effect until December 31, 2024, 
which shall be the termination date. At the time of or any time prior to the termination, this 
Memorandum can be modified or extended upon mutual agreement by the parties.  
 
 
III. OBJECTIVES 
 
The Parties shall work together to achieve the following objectives: 

1. Develop a habitat conservation and restoration plan for the lower portion of the Jetty Creek 
Watershed managed by GreenWood Resources, Inc, the “property.” 

2. Delineate areas of the property for conservation and restoration activities and work towards 
design and execution of strategies (e.g., a working forest conservation easement) that integrate 
beneficial, practical, and verifiable restoration and conservation actions.  

3. Tier and prioritize restoration and conservation actions to meet the programmatic parameters of 
the Oregon Watershed Enhancement Board (OWEB) and other potential funding entities. 
 

 
IV. STATEMENTS OF SHARED UNDERSTANDING 
 

Resolution 23-1005: Exhibit A



Page 2 of 5 
 

It is mutually agreed to and understood by the Parties that it is the best interest of the Parties and the 
watershed to:  
 

1. Continue to assess baseline conditions and the future quality and function of the Jetty Creek 
Watershed as a safe and sustainable drinking water source for the community of Rockaway 
Beach. 

2. Communicate respectfully, without denigration, both internally and externally. 
3. Share information, data and ideas to facilitate cooperative work towards the objectives detailed 

in section III of this MOU.  
4. Strive to be as efficient as possible and respectful of the time the Parties invest individually and 

together in working towards the objectives described in section III of this MOU. 
5. Build trust among the Parties, community members, local government, land managers and 

other stakeholders. 
 
V. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
The Parties collectively will: 

1. Work cooperatively and collaboratively to fulfill the individual roles and responsibilities 
outlined below by the estimated time frames provided in parentheses. Communicate as early 
and clearly as possible when timeframes require adjustment. 

2. Discuss planning a photo tour that will memorialize a visual baseline of the lower watershed 
(especially key locations of primary interest for future conservation/restoration) and allow 
additional representatives of the Parties and the community to digitally share in the project and 
vision for the future management of the watershed. The photo tour planning discussion(s) will 
include, but may not be limited to, the tour route, any necessary permissions, talking points, 
and digital distribution. (Discussion followed by tour: Summer 2023) 

3.  Assess the feasibility of various management options, which may include, but may not be 
limited to, modified management, conservation easement strategies, erosion management, 
timber management, and community/stakeholder acquisition of all or portions of the watershed.  

4.  Explore fee-title acquisition by the City of Rockaway Beach or conservation easement 
configurations that are financially feasible, practical, and manageable (from a monitoring and 
compliance perspective) and that are most likely to effectively balance resource management 
and protection objectives.  

5.  Identify potential sources of funding to support creative, aspirational and pragmatic solutions 
that meet the needs of the Parties. 

6.  Focus potential proposals and strategies on the lower watershed that is owned and managed by 
Nuveen Natural Capital. 

7. Continue to work with the City of Rockaway Beach to understand their interests and needs 
related to drinking watershed management and challenges. 

 
Nuveen Natural Capital will: 

1. Work with Sustainable Northwest and the North Coast Land Conservancy to compile available 
mapping and data into a central location/database/folder in support of ongoing assessment of 
current conditions, potential easements, and funding applications. If Parties identify additional 
data needs useful to compiling/supporting watershed analysis, those needs and scope will be 
discussed with the Working Group to determine necessity, timing, costs, etc. (ongoing) 

2. Work with North Coast Land Conservancy and Sustainable Northwest to outline the desired 
framework for a draft working forest conservation easement and/or other easement(s) which 

Resolution 23-1005: Exhibit A



Page 3 of 5 
 

will include, but may not be limited to, forest stand delineation and identification; buffer types, 
widths and configurations; and “optimal” age class distribution. (Fall 2023) 

3. Implement an innovative pilot field-scale harvest plan in the lower reaches of the watershed, as 
described in the LOI, and that will be directly tied to the parameters outlined in the draft 
working forest conservation easement and/or other easement(s). 

4. Provide easement constraint value calculation (easement cost) and all data needed for third-
party verification. 

5. Retain the authority to pursue habitat enhancement and restoration efforts such as culvert 
replacement, Large woody debris (LWD) placement, snag creation and young stand density 
management, prior to the granting of the working conservation easement holder and 
subsequently subject to consultation with the easement holder. 

6. Retain the right to perform routine road maintenance, excluding the application of herbicides. 
7. Work with the easement holder to confirm communication procedures and an approval-to-

proceed mechanism for management activities within the easement. 
8. Assume responsibility for controlling other user and recreational access via additional signs, 

gates, etc. as necessary and appropriate. 
9. Retain the authority to perform basic timberland management activities that are not expressly 

constrained by the easement, including wildland fire response. 
10. Assume the lead role in communicating with the City of Rockaway and property owners 

adjacent to the lower watershed about the Working Group activities. 
 

Sustainable Northwest will: 
1. Work with Nuveen Natural Capital and North Coast Land Conservancy to compile available 

mapping and data into a central location/database/folder in support of ongoing assessment of 
current conditions, potential easements, and funding applications. (Spring 2023) 

2. Work with Nuveen Natural Capital and North Coast Land Conservancy to outline the desired 
framework for a draft working forest conservation easement and/or other easement(s) as 
described under GreenWood Resources. Inc. above. (Fall 2023) 

3. Seek letters of support for further OWEB grant funding. (Prior to funding submission)). 
4. Identify potential funding opportunities which align with the solutions proposed within the 

working group. 
5.  Coordinate collaborative education and outreach efforts. 

 
North Coast Land Conservancy will:  

1. Work with Nuveen Natural Capital and Sustainable Northwest to compile available mapping 
and data into a central location/database/folder in support of ongoing assessment of current 
conditions, potential easements, and funding applications. (Fall 2023) 

2. Work with Nuveen Natural Capital and Sustainable Northwest to outline the desired framework 
for a draft working forest conservation easement and/or other easement(s) as described under 
Nuveen Natural Capital above. (Fall 2023) 

3. Consider holding fee-title ownership to the property or a working forest conservation easement 
and/or other easement(s). 

4. Assume the lead role in establishing a stable fund to cover monitoring costs. 
 

The City of Rockaway Beach will: 
1. Review and provide input into the mapping and data compiled as part of the watershed analysis 

described in this MOU. 

Resolution 23-1005: Exhibit A



Page 4 of 5 
 

2. Work with Nuveen Natural Capital, Sustainable Northwest, and North Coast Land 
Conservancy to outline, review, and finalize the desired framework for a draft working forest 
conservation easement and/or other easement(s) as described under Nuveen Natural Capital 
above. (1st Quarter 2024) 

3. Support the research, writing, review, and submission of funding applications (and other 
various written documentation) associated with efforts of the Working Group and under this 
MOU. 

4. Consider holding fee-title ownership to the property or a working forest conservation easement 
and/or other easement(s). 

5. Assume the lead role in community and stakeholder engagement. 
 
Items completed to date by the working group: 

1.  For the purposes of prioritizing restoration and conservation actions, the group completed a 
watershed analysis in partnership with current landowners. Among the attributes mapped were, 
for example, land cover, stream classification, soil classification, slope and soil erodibility, 
wetlands, fisheries, roads and infrastructure. Emphasis was mapping and data compilation 
sufficient for discussion and planning purposes, not necessarily a detailed narrative report 
required for purposes of funding applications, easement agreements/instruments, and other 
needs.  

2.  The group has completed a draft outlining potential conservation options for the property and 
mapping detailing potential conservation easement harvest, stream setbacks and conservation 
zones.  

3. Nuveen Natural Capital has completed several restoration projects in the lower reaches of Jetty 
Creek.  

 
VI. MODIFICATION 
 
This MOU may be modified or amended only by written agreement signed by each of the Parties to 
this MOU. New parties may be added to the MOU by modifying this MOU as described. 
 
 
VII. TERMINATION 
 
Any of the Parties may terminate their participation in this MOU following a 30-day advance written 
notice to the other Parties. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have fully executed this Memorandum as of the _____ day 
of September 2023. 
 
 
             
Nuveen Natural Capital    Kevin Brown 
a _____________________________  Pacific Northwest Area Manager 
 
        
 
             
Sustainable Northwest     Daniel Wear  

Resolution 23-1005: Exhibit A



Page 5 of 5 
 

a _____________________________  Forest Program Manager 
        
             
       Greg Block  
       President 
              
 
             
North Coast Land Conservancy    Jon Wickersham 
a _____________________________  Associate Director 
 
        
             
City of Rockaway Beach    Luke Shepard 
a _____________________________  City Manager 
 

Resolution 23-1005: Exhibit A



Resolution No. 23-1006  Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO 23-1006 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH TILLAMOOK COUNTY 
FOR LAKE LYTLE BOAT LAUNCH 

 
WHEREAS, the Tillamook County is the owner of a 0.86 acre parcel of land within the 
City known as the Lake Lytle Boat Launch; and 
 
WHEREAS, units of local government may enter into agreements concerning managing 
park and recreation lands for recreational purposes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is interested in making substantial improvements to the Lake Lytle 
property to increase the recreational opportunities for the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, City is in the process of adopting an improvement plan for the property; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to lease the Lake Lytle property from the County under the 
conditions set forth in the agreement attached as Exhibit A.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Rockaway Beach City Council 
hereby approves the lease agreement with Tillamook County for the Lake Lytle Boat 
Launch, attached as Exhibit A. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, AND EFFECTIVE THE 13TH 
DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 
 

APPROVED 
 
 
             
        Charles McNeilly, Mayor 
 

ATTEST 
 
 
      
Melissa Thompson, City Recorder 



Resolution 23-1006: Exhibit A



Resolution 23-1006: Exhibit A



Resolution 23-1006: Exhibit A



Resolution 23-1006: Exhibit A



Resolution 23-1006: Exhibit A



Resolution 23-1006: Exhibit A



Resolution No. 23-1008  Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO 23-1008 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH NEAH-KAH-NIE 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 56 FOR TENNIS COURT PROPERTY 

 
WHEREAS, Neah-Kah-Nie School District No. 56, Tillamook County, Oregon, 
hereinafter referred to as District, is the owner of the real property described, below, 
hereinafter referred to as the Tennis Court Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties had previously entered a tennis court lease dated June 4, 1979 
for twenty-five (25) years, but that lease has long since expired; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has constructed tennis courts on the Tennis Court Property, during 
that first Lease with the District, for the use of the public without charge and without 
discrimination; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to lease the Tennis Court Property from the District under 
the conditions set forth in the agreement attached as Exhibit A.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Rockaway Beach City Council 
hereby approves the lease agreement with Neah-Kah-Nie School District No. 56 for the 
Tennis Court Property, attached as Exhibit A. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, AND EFFECTIVE THE 13TH 
DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 
 

APPROVED 
 
 
             
        Charles McNeilly, Mayor 
 

ATTEST 
 
 
      
Melissa Thompson, City Recorder 



Page 1 Tennis Court Lease 
Neah-Kah-Nie School District – City of Rockaway Beach 

 

Tennis Court Lease 
 

WHEREAS, Neah-Kah-Nie School District No. 56, Tillamook County, Oregon, 

hereinafter referred to as District, is the owner of the real property described, below, hereinafter 

the Tennis Court Property; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District has determined that the District does 

not presently have a need for, or in the foreseeable future will not need, the Tennis Court 

Property; 

 

WHEREAS, the parties had previously entered a tennis court lease dated June 4, 1979 

for twenty-five (25) years, but that lease has long since expired and both parties agree that the 

unencumbered entire ownership of the Tennis Court Property has reverted entirely back to the 

District. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Rockaway Beach, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred 

to as the City, has constructed tennis courts on the Tennis Court Property, during that first 

Lease with the District, for the use of the public without charge and without discrimination; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District has determined that it would be in the best public interest to re- 

enter into a lease of the Tennis Court Property with the City for the purposes described herein, 

on the following terms and conditions: 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, agreements and stipulations 

herein contained (hereinafter Lease), the District hereby leases to the City the Tennis Court 

Property of approximately   square feet, described in the Exhibit A map attached hereto 

and by this reference incorporated herein (hereinafter the Tennis Court Property). 

 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Tennis Court Property for one (1) year, commencing on 

 , and terminating at 9:00 p.m. on the day immediately preceding the one- 

year anniversary of the commencement date of this Lease, unless sooner terminated as 

hereinafter provided. 

 

In consideration of this Lease, and of the covenants and agreements herein contained, 

each party hereby agrees as follows: 

 

1.0 Rent. The rental for the term of this Lease shall be for $10.00 for the entire term, 

payable upon the signing of this agreement. 

Resolution 23-1008: Exhibit A



Page 2 Tennis Court Lease 
Neah-Kah-Nie School District – City of Rockaway Beach 

 

 

2.0 Use. This Lease is entered into on the condition that the Tennis Court Property 

shall be solely used as tennis courts or pickleball courts and in the event that the Tennis Court 

Property is not available for use for a consecutive period of six (6) months at any time during 

the term of this Lease, the agreement shall terminate and the Tennis Court Property shall be 

returned to the District, together with any and all improvements located thereon, substantially 

the same condition that it was in when this Lease began, without any abatement of the rent. 

 

3.0 No Charge to the Public; No Discrimination. The City further agrees that the 

Tennis Court Property shall be used for tennis or pickleball courts by the public without charge 

and without discrimination on the basis of race, creed, gender, national origin, or age. 

 

4.0 Maintenance. The City further agrees to keep and maintain the Tennis Court 

Property in good condition and repair, free from debris on the Tennis Court Property. 

 

5.0 Improvements. The parties acknowledge that, through the years, the Tennis 

Court Property has suffered from neglect and disrepair. Consequently, the City agrees to keep 

and maintain the Tennis Court Property in at least the same condition that it is currently in, but 

with an eye towards developing a longer-term relationship between the parties regarding the 

Tennis Court Property. 

 

6.0 Hold Harmless. In accordance with the Oregon Tort Claims Act and the Oregon 

Constitution, City agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the District and its officers, 

agents and employees against all liability, loss and costs arising from actions, suits, claims or 

demands for the acts or omissions of the City and the City’s officers, agents and employees, in 

performance of this Lease, as well as any of the public’s damage to the Exhibit A property. 

 
7.0 Default. Failure for the City to comply with any of the terms of this Lease shall 

be cause for termination and forfeiture of this Lease; however, District must give notice in 

writing to the City by sending to the City Recorder, City Hall, Rockaway Beach, Oregon, 97136 a 

Notice of Default specifying the failure of the City to comply with one or more terms of the 

terms of this Lease. If, thirty (30) days or more from the date that the Notice of Default is 

mailed to the City, the default has not been cured to the reasonable satisfaction of the City, the 

Lease shall terminate without any abatement of rent. 

 

8.0 Attorney’s Fees. In the event of any litigation or arbitration enforcing or 

interpreting this Lease, the prevailing party shall be entitled to such attorney’s fees and costs as 

the trial court or the appellate court shall determine to be reasonable. 

Resolution 23-1008: Exhibit A



Page 3 Tennis Court Lease 
Neah-Kah-Nie School District – City of Rockaway Beach 

 

 

9.0 Oregon Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Oregon. 

 

 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their respective officers, duly 

authorized to do so by their respective Board or Council, effective the   day of 

 , 2023. 
 

 

 

Neah-Kah-Nie City of Rockaway Beach 

School District No. 56 

Tillamook County, Oregon 

 

 
By:   By:   

Chair Mayor 

 
Attest:   Attest:   

Clerk City Recorder 

Resolution 23-1008: Exhibit A



 Exhibit A   

 

Tennis Court Property Size: Approximately 6960 sq. Ft.  

Resolution 23-1008: Exhibit A



Coffee with Manager and Mayor 
August 24, 2023 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

• As a new resident, how do I get engaged with the City? 
▪ Attend or watch the City Council Workshop on the second Wednesday at 4:30 pm at 

City Hall 
o Discussions that set the stage for future decisions 

▪ Attend or watch the City Council Meeting on the second Wednesday at 6:00 pm at 
City Hall 

o Decision making meeting 
▪ Attend or watch the Planning Commission Meeting on the third Thursday at 4:30 pm 

at City Hall 
o Land use decisions 

• Water Availability 
▪ Other coastal communities are having issues with water availability (Wheeler 

and Nehalem) 
▪ Suggested City investigate the viability of building a desalination plant as a 

solution to our long-term need for drinking water 
• Recent announcement of Water Conservation Effort 

▪ Suggested that City should do more than online (Facebook and Web Site)  
notifications to maximize the number of residents who learn about the need 

▪ Make sure Water Conservations Effort notifications are in STRs 
▪ Suggested that City develop a program to offset the cost of replacing 

showerheads and toilets that reduce water usage 
▪ City Manager Shepard shared that are greatest water usage issue is leaks in 

the system.   
o The Nedonna Water Main Project will replace the leakiest section of 

water lines.   
o Additionally, Public Works will be mapping the remainder of the water 

system to identify leaks (Leak Detection Crews) for repair 
• Developers who balk at requirements for upgrading infrastructure avoid those costs 

by reducing the number of lots below the minimum of 4 to be considered a 
subdivision.  The Developer then waits the 12 months then further divide one of the 
lots. 

▪ Suggested City Council close this loophole to stop pushing infrastructure 
costs to the residents 

• Community Center – Asked that City write a policy that makes it easier for residents 
to reserve and use the facility.  

▪ Liability Insurance requirement is an impediment for many small groups – City 
Manager Shepard reported that the City’s insurance company has informed 
him that the City is on the hook for any liability if this requirement is not 
followed. 

• Add a Community Calendar to the City website. 
  



Coffee with Manager and Mayor 
August 24, 2023 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

• Wayfinding Project 
▪ Were all of the Dog Poop stations installed as promised? 
▪ New Wayfinding Garbage Cans 

o The new garbage cans are not user friendly; takes two hands to throw 
away garbage and may have ADA issues due to height off the ground 

o The new garbage cans get dirty and the ones next to Sea Breeze get 
gooped up with disposed ice cream 

o Takes more effort on the part of Public Works to service 
• Who is responsible for keeping the sidewalks on 101 swept and clean? 

▪ City Manager Shepard said it was the merchants responsibility ; they own the 
sidewalks.  

o It was suggested that the merchants be reminded that maintenance is 
their responsibility.   

• Who is responsible for cleaning the ditch parallel to 101 between railroad tracks and 
101? 

▪ City Manager Shepard suggested it was the Oregon Coast Scenic Railroad. 
▪ If the City engaged in a voluntarily clean up, it would need to be done in a 

safe manner given the proximity to 101. 


	1. City Council Meeting Agenda 2023-09-13
	4a. CC DRAFT Minutes 2023-08-09
	4b. CC WS DRAFT Minutes 2023-08-09
	4c. August Draft Financial Statement
	6a. Staff Report - August 2023 Fire Dept
	6b. Staff Report - TCSO Aug23 Rockaway Report
	6c. Staff Report - 2023-9 Public Works
	10a. Fire Apparatus Financing Proposal
	10a. Resolution 23-1003 Approving Lease Agreement for Fire Apparatus
	10b. Community Grant Applications 2023
	10b. Resolution 23-1004 Awarding 2023 Community Grant Recipients
	10c. Resolution 23-1005 Approving MOU Jetty Creek Working Group
	10d. Resolution 23-1006 Approving Lease Agreement with County Lake Lytle
	10e. Resolution 23-1008 Approving Lease Agreement with NKNSD Tennis Court
	13. Coffee with Manager and Mayor Notes 2023 0824

